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July 29, 2013 
 
TO:  Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
FROM: Keene Simonds, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Authorization to Approve Audit Expenditure  
 The Commission will consider authorizing the Executive Officer to 

approve an expenditure in the amount of $4,725 to Gallina LLP to prepare 
an independent audit of the agency’s financial statements for 2012-2013.    

 
 

Local Agency Formation Commissions (LAFCOs) are authorized under California 
Government Code Section 56380 to enter into agreements or contracts with public and 
private parties for services necessary to fulfill its regulatory and planning responsibilities.  
 
A.  Background 
 
It is the practice of LAFCO of Napa County (“Commission”) to authorize the Chair to 
enter into an agreement with a public accounting firm to conduct an independent audit of 
the agency’s financial statements for the prior fiscal year.  The purpose of the audit is for 
a third-party to assess the reliability of the Commission’s financial statements by 
reviewing records and testing transactions to determine their compliance with generally 
accepted governmental accounting standards.  The audit also provides an opportunity for 
the third-party to identify reporting omissions and to make suggestions for improvements. 
 
B.  Discussion  
 
The Commission has received an engagement letter from Gallina, LLP to prepare an 
independent audit concerning the agency’s financial statements for the 2012-2013 fiscal 
year.  Gallina is headquartered in Sacramento, California and is entering the third year of 
a three-year contract to provide auditing services for the County of Napa.  Gallina’s 
proposed cost to prepare the audit for the Commission is $4,725.   This amount equals 
Gallina’s charge to the Commission for preparing an audit for the 2011-2012 fiscal year.  
 
An expanded overview on the County’s competitive procurement process for outside 
auditing services is attached. 
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C.  Analysis   
 
It is generally accepted governmental agencies should prepare annual audits to enhance 
transparency in the management of public funds.  Additionally, as mentioned, the 
Commission relies on the annual audit process as a performance measure for staff as well 
as to identify opportunities to improve accounting practices.  Accordingly, while not a 
requirement, it is appropriate for the Commission to enter into an agreement with Gallina 
based on its contractual relationship with the County to prepare an audit on the agency’s 
financial statements for the 2012-2013 fiscal year (emphasis added).  Entering the 
proposed agreement with Gallina requires Commission authorization given the quoted 
cost – $4,725 – exceeds the Executive Officer’s spending authority under agency policy.1

 
   

D.  Recommendation 
 
It is recommended the Commission authorize the Executive Officer to approve an 
expenditure in the amount of $4,725 for Gallina to prepare an independent audit for the 
2012-2013 fiscal year. 
 
E.  Alternatives for Action 
 
The following three alternatives are available to the Commission: 
 

Authorize the Executive Officer to approve an expenditure in the amount of $4,725 
for Galling to prepare an independent audit for the 2012-2013 fiscal year.   

Alternative Action One (Recommended): 

 

Continue consideration of the item to another meeting while providing appropriate 
direction to staff with respect to any additional information requests.  

Alternative Action Two:   

 
Alternative Action Three:
Take no action. 

   

 
F.  Procedures for Consideration  
 
This item has been agendized as part of the consent calendar.  Accordingly, a successful 
motion to approve the consent calendar will include taking affirmative action on the staff 
recommendation unless otherwise specified by the Commission.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
____________________ 
Keene Simonds 
Executive Officer   

                                                        
1  Commission policy prohibits the Executive Officer from approving any single or cumulative expense in excess of $3,000.   

Attachments:  
 
1)  Engagement Letter from Gallina LLP 
2)  Summary of County’s Process to Select Audit Firm 
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MEMO 
 
TO:  Board of Supervisors 
  Nancy Watt, CEO 
  Minh Tran, County Counsel 
  Helene Franchi, CEO Principal Analyst 
 
FROM: Tracy Schulze, Auditor-Controller 
 
DATE:  January 22, 2013 
 
RE:  RFP for Independent Auditor 
 
This memo is in response to Supervisor Dodd’s request to ensure that the Board is fulfilling its 
obligation to the public, regarding due diligence in selecting the County’s independent audit firm.  The 
concern results from the fact that Gallina, LLP (Gallina) has been the County’s audit firm for several 
years and there are opinions that indicate it is prudent to rotate audit firms every 3-5 years.   
 
For background information, on April 19th

 

, 2011 I provided an update to the Board on the Request for 
Proposal (RFP) for Independent Auditors.  I have attached the agenda item for the contract awarded on 
June 7, 2011.  For this RFP, I spent several days compiling best practice language and structure, 
organized an audit committee, created a well-structured, specific grading process, and even spoke to the 
Grand Jury on several occasions requesting their participation on the audit committee.  I worked with 
the CEO’s office and County Counsel’s office to ensure that Napa County was producing a 
comprehensive request.   

As stated in the June 7th agenda item, the RFP was mailed to 33 firms and included a pre-proposal 
conference for questions and answers. Two interested bidders attended the conference in person, one 
attended by phone.  The County received five bids at closing, with one being disqualified for not 
meeting the minimum requirements.  An Audit Committee, consisting of the Auditor-Controller, 
Assistant Auditor-Controller, Internal Audit Manager, CEO Principal Management Analyst and Deputy 
County Counsel, thoroughly reviewed each proposal against predetermined criteria.  Technical Expertise 
was valued at 60% and cost was valued at 40%.  Overall, the four firms were comparable in expertise, 
with slight variations, but the three new proposals were much higher in cost.  Therefore, the bid was 
awarded to Gallina for 3 years with a 2 year extension option and included a change in partner assigned 
to the County’s audit as specified in auditing best practices. 
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I have also attached some recent literature from three highly regarded resources in the accounting 
profession that provides arguments both for and against auditor rotation.  The Public Company 
Accounting Oversight Board (PCAOB) is a nonprofit corporation established by Congress to protect the 
interests of investors, overseeing the audits of broker-dealers, including compliance reports filed 
pursuant to federal securities law.  The PCAOB provided a concept paper that examines all sides of the 
argument with a heavy focus on the ability for private companies to “make deals” with their auditors. 
(Attachment A).  Although they lean towards audit rotation, there is no true evidence that rotation 
reduces the risk of fraud and in some arguments, rotation is said to increase the potential of fraud.  
Invited to comment on the PCAOB’s report, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
(AICPA) submitted a response (Attachment B).  The AICPA is the world’s largest member association 
representing the accounting profession, with nearly 386,000 members in 128 countries, and sets ethical 
standards for the profession and U.S. auditing standards for private companies, nonprofit organizations, 
federal, state and local governments.  Their position is that mandatory auditor rotation is costly and has 
the potential to hinder than enhance audit quality.   And finally, the third attachment (Attachment C) is 
the related best practice standard written by the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA).  
GFOA is the professional association of state/provincial and local finance officers in the United States 
and Canada, and has served the public finance profession since 1906. GFOA members, which I am a 
current member, are dedicated to the sound management of government financial resources.  GFOA 
concluded that best practice is that governmental entities should undertake a full scale competitive 
process for selection every five years. 

Although there are strong arguments both for and against, due diligence lies with putting proper controls 
and practices in place to ensure the services being provided are in the best interest of the public that the 
County serves.  As an independently elected official, I also share this duty with you and can assure you 
that continuing to have the firm Gallina as the County’s independent auditor serves the best interest of 
the public.  Gallina knows the County and can actually audit and really dig into specific areas each year 
instead of trying to learn about the County and spending all their time creating an audit program that 
simply verifies proper signatures and correct documentation.  Furthermore, the learning curve of a new 
audit firm, not only defers in-depth auditing procedures for the first few years, it also demands a greater 
amount of County staff time over the period of the audit, making it even more costly.   

Overall, I do not agree with changing an audit firm just for the sake of changing firms. Highly regarded 
industrial publications show that the best practice is to solicit bids every five years to ensure you have 
the most qualified firm within the market rate.  We did this and we will continue to do this. Best practice 
also states that you should mitigate risks of keeping the same firm by mandatory partner and audit 
staffing changes which provides the same “new look” as a different firm would have, but at a much less 
cost to the County and tax payers.  With the new contract awarded, we required a partner change and 
that they rotate their audit staff assignments each year.  
 
I would be happy to meet with you anytime if you have any additional questions or concerns. 




